LOCAL 3435

TOWNSHIP OF ABERDEEN

JANUARY 1, 2022 - DECEMBER 31, 2025

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-57

BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of Aberdeen that that Collective Negotiations Agreement between Local 3435 affiliated the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, and the Township of Aberdeen for the period of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2025 is hereby approved.

ROLL CALL VOTE:

Ayes: Councilmembers Cannon, Hirsch, Martucci, Montone, Swindle, Deputy Mayor Kelley

Nays: None Abstain: None

Absent: Mayor Tagliarini

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true copy of a resolution adopted by the Township Council of the Township of Aberdeen at a regular council meeting held on March 17, 2022

Melissa Pfeifer

Melissa Pfeifer, Municipal Clerk

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u> </u>	PAGE
ARTICLE	1 –	RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE		UNION SECURITY	
ARTICLE		CHECK-OFF UNION FEES	
ARTICLE		PROBATIONARY PERIOD	
ARTICLE	-	HOUR OF WORK AND OVERTIME	
ARTICLE	_	SENIORITY	
ARTICLE	7 -	FORCE REDUCTION	
ARTICLE	,	JOB VACANCIES, NEW JOBS CREATED OR PROMOTIONS	
	-	,	
ARTICLE	9 -	NON-DISCRIMINATION	
ARTICLE	10 -		
ARTICLE		· VACATIONS	
		- LEAVE OF ABSENCE	
	13 -	- PAID SICK LEAVE	
	15 -		
		- VETERANS RIGHTS AND BENEFITS	
ARTICLE	17 -	DISCHARGE	. 11
ARTICLE	18 -	- GRIEVANCE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURE - EMPLOYEE	. 11
ARTICLE	20 -	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	. 14
ARTICLE	21 -	BREAKS	. 15
ARTICLE	22 -	UNIFORMS	. 15
ARTICLE	23 -	SUPPER PROVISION	.15
ARTICLE	24 -	PRESCRIPTION PLAN	.16
ARTICLE	25 -	HEALTH, PENSION AND WELFARE BENEFITS	.16
ARTICLE	26 -	DENTAL	. 17
ARTICLE	27 -	- WAGES	. 17
ARTICLE	28 -	- LONGEVITY	.18
ARTICLE	29 -	- STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS	. 18
ARTICLE	30 -	RIGHTS	. 19
ARTICLE	31 -	- EMPLOYEE TRAINING	.19

ARTICLE	32		EMPLOY	EE	PERFOR	MANCE	3			 	 	 2	20
ARTICLE	33		UNION	RIG	GHTS					 	 	 2	21
ARTICLE	34	-	FULLY	BAF	RGAINED	PROV	/ISIONS			 	 	 2	22
ARTICLE	35	-	TERM A	.ND	RENEWA	L				 	 	 2	22
EXHIBIT	ONE] -	- CLASS	IFI	CATION	AND	SALARY	SCHE	DULE.	 	 	 2	23

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into as of the day of 2022 between ABERDEEN TOWNSHIP, a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "TOWNSHIP" and LOCAL NO. 3435 affiliated with the AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, a Labor Village Nottingham Organization, located at Square, 2653A Whitehorse-Hamilton Square Road, Trenton, New Jersey 08690, hereinafter referred to as the "UNION".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Union has presented proof that it represents the Aberdeen Township Road Department and Building and Grounds employees, excluding Supervisory Office and Clerical employees: and

WHEREAS, the Aberdeen Township Road Department and Building and Grounds employees by virtue thereof, has recognized the said Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all the Aberdeen Township Department of Public Works and Buildings and Grounds employees, excluding Supervisory Office and Clerical employees of Aberdeen Township, New Jersey:

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed between the parties hereto, that, except where otherwise provided, the following agreement shall become effective January 1, 2022:

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION

SECTION 1 - The Aberdeen Township Road, Water, Parks and Recreation Department and Building and Grounds employees hereby recognize the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all employees now employed or to be employed by the Aberdeen Township Road, Water, Parks and Recreational Department and Building and Grounds employees, excluding Supervisory Office and Clerical employees of Aberdeen Township, New Jersey, in all those matters specifically provided for herein pertaining to wages, hours and conditions of employment.

SECTION 2 - The bargaining unit shall consist of all Aberdeen Township Road, Water, Parks and Recreation Department and Building and Grounds employees, excluding Supervisory Office and Clerical employees of Aberdeen Township, New Jersey.

SECTION 3 - The titles included in the bargaining unit are Road Repairer, Equipment Operator, Mechanic, Building Service Worker, Water Repairer, Sewer Repairer, Parks Maintenance Worker, and Senior Parks Maintenance Worker.

SECTION 4 - Wherever used herein the term "employees" shall mean and be construed only as referring to the Aberdeen Township Road, Water, Parks and Recreation Department and Building and Grounds employees covered by this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2 - UNION SECURITY

SECTION 1 — The Township agrees it will give effect to the following form of Union Security:

- A. All present employees who are members of the Local Union on the effective date of this Agreement may remain members of the Local Union in good standing by payment of the regular monthly dues.
- B. It is agreed that at time of hire, newly hired employees who fall within the bargaining unit, will be informed that they have the opportunity to join the Union thirty (30) days thereafter.

ARTICLE 3 - CHECK-OFF UNION FEES

UNION DUES - A. The Township hereby agrees to deduct from the wages of employees, by means of a check-off, the dues uniformly required by the Labor Organization pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 52:14-15.9e. The Township, after receipt of written authorization from each individual employee, agrees to deduct from the salaries of said employees their monthly dues and initiation fees. Such deductions shall be made from the 2nd salary paid to each employee during the month and such deduction made the 1st month shall be a double deduction and thereafter the regular deduction shall apply to dues owed for the following month.

B. In making the deductions and transmittals as above specified, the Township shall reply upon the most recent communication from the Union as to the amount of monthly dues. Said monies, together with a list of names and amounts of dues so during the membership year in question. The Township, however, will assume no liability for administrative oversight or errors or insufficient paycheck funds.

- C. Except as otherwise provided in this Article, the mechanics for the deduction of Representation Fees and the transmission of such fees to the Union will, as nearly as possible, be the same as those used for the deduction and transmission of regular membership dues to the Union.
- D. The Union will notify the Township, in writing, of any changes in the list provided for in paragraph 1, above and/or the amount of the Representation Fee, and such changes will be reflected in any deductions made more than ten (10) days after the Township received said notice.
- E. The Union shall indemnify, defend and hold the Township harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken by the Township in reliance upon the salary deduction authorization forms submitted by the Union to the Township.
- F. On or about the last day of each month beginning with the month this Agreement became effective, the Township will submit to the Union, a list of all employees who begin their employment in a bargaining unit position during the preceding thirty (30) day period. The list will include names, job titles and dates of employment for all such employees. The Township further agrees to notify the Union in the event dues for an employee cannot be deducted from the designated salary and the reason thereof.
- G. AFSCME Local 3435 shall establish and maintain at all times a demand and return system as provided by the N.J.S.A. 34:13A-5.5 (c) and 5.6, and membership in AFSCME Local 3435 shall be available to all employees in the unit on an equal basis at all times. In the event AFSCME Local 3435 fails to maintain such a system or if membership is not so available, the Township shall immediately cease making said deductions

ARTICLE 4 - PROBATIONARY PERIOD

- **SECTION 1** The probationary period shall conform to N.J.S.A. 11:22-6, a period of three (3) months, which may not be extended.
- SECTION 2 During the aforementioned probationary period, the Township may discharge such employee for any reason whatsoever. An employee discharged during such probationary period shall not have recourse to the grievance procedure as set forth in this Agreement. The Township shall have no responsibility for the re-employment of

newly engaged probationary employees if they are dismissed during the probationary period.

ARTICLE 5 - HOUR OF WORK AND OVERTIME

SECTION 1

The normal workweek for employees shall be comprised of any five (5) days from Monday to Sunday, of any eight (8) hour shift each. If there is a change in the normal workweek, the Township shall provide ten (10) days advanced notice of the change.

SECTION 2 — Any work performed beyond eight (8) hours in any one day of the normal work week shall be considered overtime and compensated for at one and one—half (1-1/2) times the regular hourly rate of pay.

SECTION 3 - Employees called to work prior to the start of their shift, shall be paid the overtime rate for any such time worked, provided that the employee completes his regular eight (8) hours for that day.

SECTION 4 - The Township shall notify employees of any sixth day or Seventh work no later than the end of the shift 48 hours prior, except for emergencies, snow removal and/or ice control. If an employee covered by this section works a sixth day, the first eight hours shall be paid at time and a half. All other hours for that day shall be at double time. The seventh day shall also be paid double time. Overtime if over 8 hours in a pay period will be paid by separate check.

SECTION 5 - Overtime shall be offered first to full time union members, followed by part-time union members and then to non-union members. Overtime work offered but refused by an employee shall be counted as overtime worked for the purpose of determining the equitable distribution of overtime. The rotational overtime list with overtime worked or offered shall be posted.

SECTION 6 - For the purpose of all overtime calls, employees must provide a telephone number to the Township for the purpose of receiving such calls. If the designated telephone number changes, the employee must notify the Township immediately. When offering overtime, the Director/Supervisor will call the first person on the rotational overtime list at the designated phone number. If the member fails to answer, the Director/Supervisor shall leave a message regarding the overtime opportunity. If the member fails to respond to the overtime offer within fifteen (15) minutes, the

Director/Supervisor will call the next person on the overtime list. A member's failure to timely respond will be considered overtime offered but refused for purposes of maintaining the rotational overtime list.

- **SECTION 7** Overtime work offered but refused by a member or overtime missed for any reason, including vacation or personal time, shall be counted as overtime worked for purposes of determining the equitable distribution of overtime. Accordingly, once overtime is worked, refused, or missed for any reason, the employee shall be moved to the "bottom" of the list.
- **SECTION 8** Any employee assigned to work overtime for another Department/Division shall be subject to the supervision and direction of that Department's Director/ Supervisor.
- **SECTION 9** In awarding overtime hours, the Township maintains the managerial prerogative to deviate from the rotational overtime lists when specialized skills are required to complete any particular overtime assignments.
- **SECTION 10** In the event an employee is called back to work after the conclusion of his normal work shift, the employees will be entitled to a minimum of four (4) hours pay at the overtime rate that is applicable.
- **SECTION 11** Any overtime performed over eight (8) hours will be paid in a separate check.
- **SECTION 12** Storm Event Overtime In the event of an emergency as determined in the sole discretion of the Township Manager where an overtime shift continues into and through a scheduled shift, the overtime rate will be paid for the entirety of the storm.

ARTICLE 6 - SENIORITY

SECTION 1 - The Township shall establish and maintain a seniority list of employees' names and dates of employment from the date of last hire in a system-wide basis, with the employee with the longest length of continuous and uninterrupted system-wide service to be placed at the top of said seniority list. The names of all employees with the shorter length of continuous service shall follow the same senior employee, in order, until the name of the employee with the shortest length of service appears at the foot of the list. The seniority of each employee shall date from the employee's date of last hiring with the Township.

SECTION 2 - New employees retained beyond the probationary period shall be considered permanent employees and their length of service with the Township shall begin with the original date of their employment and their names placed on the "Seniority List". Such seniority list shall be kept up to date with additions and subtractions as required.

SECTION 3 - The above shall conform to Civil Service procedures.

ARTICLE 7 - FORCE REDUCTION

- **SECTION 1** The Township agrees that it will not engage any new employees unless all of the employees presently employed are working the scheduled hours noted in this Agreement.
- **SECTION 2** In the reduction or restoration of the working force, the rule to be followed shall be the length of service with the Township. The employee with the least seniority shall be laid off first and in re-hiring, the same principle shall apply, namely, the last employee laid off shall be the first to be re-hired.
- **SECTION 3** The shop steward and the employees involved in such layoff shall receive seventy-two (72) hours' notice prior to any layoff .

SECTION 4 - The above shall conform to Civil Service procedures.

ARTICLE 8 - JOB VACANCIES, NEW JOBS CREATED OR PROMOTIONS

SECTION 1 - Job vacancies, new jobs created or promotions shall conform to Civil Service procedures.

ARTICLE 9 - NON-DISCRIMINATION

It is agreed that the parties hereto will continue their practice of not discriminating against any employee because of race, color, creed, religion, nationality or sex. No employee shall be discriminated against or interfered with because of Union activities.

ARTICLE 10 - HOLIDAYS

SECTION 1 The Township agrees to guarantee to all of the employees within the bargaining unit the following holidays with full pay for eight (8) hours at the employee's regular straight time rate of pay, though no work is performed on such days:

1/2 Day before New Year's Day Labor Day

New Year's Day Veterans Day

Thanksgiving Day Friday after Thanksgiving

Martin Luther King Day Independence Day

Lincoln's Birthday 1/2 Day before Christmas Day

Presidents' Day Good Friday
Christmas Day Memorial Day

One (1) Floating Holiday

1st Tuesday after the 1st Monday in November when there are National and State elections.

Five (5) Personal Days per year with 48 hours notice given before taking such a day. Beginning July 1, 2012, two (2) of these days shall require no advanced notice or blue forms.

Three (3) Personal Days per year, shall be for sickness in the immediate family, not to be accumulated from year to year.

Sickness in family days do not accumulate from year to year. Doctor's note is required.

SECTION 2 - The dates for holidays shall be in accordance with a schedule established or approved by the Township manager. Floating holidays may be scheduled on any work day during the year by employees, provided the department head is given notice at least forty—eight (48) hours in advance of the selected day.

SECTION 3 - Employees who work on any of the above holidays shall be paid for such work at two and one-half (2-1/2) times the employee's regular rate, which shall include the holiday pay.

SECTION 4 - If a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, it may be celebrated and compensated accordingly on the day preceding or the day following such holiday at the discretion of the Township manager.

SECTION 5 - If a holiday falls within the vacation period of an employee, the employee shall receive pay for it or an additional day of vacation.

ARTICLE 11 - VACATIONS

- **SECTION 1** The Township agrees to grant to all employees within the bargaining unit vacations in accordance with the following schedule:
- A. Employees with less than one year of service shall receive one (1) paid vacation day for each month of service, provided probationary period has been completed. There will be no vacation accrued for any employee dismissed during the probationary period.
- B. 1 to 2 full calendar years of service shall receive 12 vacation days per year.
- C. 3 to 4 full calendar years of service shall receive 15 vacation days per year.
- D. 5 to 8 full calendar years of service shall receive 19 vacation days per year.
- E. 9 to 12 full calendar years of service shall receive 21 vacation days per year.
- F.~~13-~15 full calendar years of service shall receive 23 vacation days per year.
- G. 16 or more full calendar years of service shall receive 25 vacation days per year.
- **SECTION 2** The Township agrees that in the event an employee voluntarily leaves the employ of the Township before the vacation period, he shall be compensated for any accrued vacation time that may be due to him in accordance with the above schedule.
- SECTION 3 The vacation schedule shall be drafted by the Township on or before April 1st of each year and posted on the Bulletin Board. In preparing the vacation schedule, the Township shall endeavor to assign vacations on the basis of system-wide seniority of its employees. It is specifically agreed, however, that the assignment of all vacations shall be determined by the Township with due regard to its efficient operation.

- **SECTION 4** Vacations shall be taken during the regular vacation period between April 1st and December 31st inclusive. Employees may request that their vacation may be taken at a period other than the time set forth herein and the Township will give fair consideration to such request. An employee must request a vacation seven (7) days in advance and such vacation shall not be unreasonably denied.
- **SECTION 5** Vacation time may not be accumulated for a period past the vacation year without the written consent of the Township manager. An unused vacation may be carried forward into the next succeeding year only.
- **SECTION 6** Employees may take up to two (2) vacation days per year in single days, with five (5) days' advance notice and approval by the Township.

ARTICLE 12 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE

SECTION 1 - Upon making timely application, employees may apply to the Township for a leave of absence without pay for a period not exceeding ninety (90) days without loss of seniority rights. The reason for such request shall be made known to the Township, and the Township will give reasonable consideration to such application. A leave of absence in order to be valid must be obtained in writing and conform to Civil Service regulations.

ARTICLE 13 - PAID SICK LEAVE

- **SECTION 1** Fifteen (15) days paid sick leave each year shall be granted to all employees and the same be cumulative from year to year and shall be applied as per present practice.
- **SECTION 2** Any unused sick days shall be forfeited by the employee upon termination of his employment, regardless of reason, except retirement, in such case, the Township of Aberdeen will pay employees one-half of their accumulative sick pay up to a maximum of \$15,000 upon death or retirement for employees hired prior to June 1, 2018. (all employees hired after June 1, 2018 will not receive a sick time buy out at retirement)
- SECTION 3 A sick leave incentive program shall be as follows; For the use of zero to 3 sick days during the calendar year the employee shall receive \$1,000.00. After the use of the third sick day \$200.00 will be deducted from the \$1,000.00 incentive. Thereafter, for each

addition sick day used, \$200.00 will be deducted from the remaining amount and the employee shall receive the balance the following year.

ARTICLE 14 - BEREAVEMENT

- **SECTION 1** a. Employees shall be granted up to five (5) days off with pay at the employee's straight time rate when death occurs in the employee's immediate family. Immediate family shall be defined as father, mother, husband, wife, son, daughter, brother, sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, or other relative living under the same roof.
- b. Employees shall be granted up to three (3) days off with pay at the employee's straight time rate upon the death of their maternal or paternal grandparents.
- c. Employees shall be granted one (1) day off with pay to attend the funeral of any other relative.

ARTICLE 15 - JURY DUTY

An employee who is called for jury duty shall be paid the difference between the daily fee allowed by the Court and eight (8) hours straight time pay for scheduled working time lost.

ARTICLE 16 - VETERANS RIGHTS AND BENEFITS

- SECTION 1 The seniority rights of all employees who enlist or who are drafted pursuant to an appropriate law now in force, or to be enacted, shall be maintained during such period of military service. Each such employee shall have the right to reinstatement to his former position or to a position of equal status at the salary rate previously received by him at the time of his induction into military service, together with all salary increases granted by the Township to said employee's previous position during the period of such military service.
- **SECTION 2** Reinstatement of veterans shall be upon application made within ninety (90) days after such an employee is honorably discharged from service. This clause shall be subject to all pertinent and applicable provisions of the Selective Training and Service Act, as amended.

- **SECTION 3** The Township agrees to allow the necessary time for any employee in the Reserves to perform his duties when called without impairment of his seniority rights.
- **SECTION 4** The Township agrees to pay an employee for all reasonable time involved in reporting for a physical examination for Military Service.
- **SECTION 5** Upon the return of an employee from Military Service, the employee shall displace the last employee hired.

ARTICLE 17 - DISCHARGE

SECTION 1 - There shall be no discipline or discharge except for just and sufficient cause, except that a newly engaged employee shall be subject to dismissal for any cause whatsoever prior to the expiration of the probationary period. The Union shall be notified of the discharge of any employee at the time of such discharge, which notification shall set forth the reason for the discharge. The above shall conform to Civil Service Procedures.

ARTICLE 18 - GRIEVANCE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURE - EMPLOYEE

SECTION 1-PURPOSE

- A. The purpose of this procedure is to secure at the lowest possible level, an equitable solution to problems which may arise affecting the terms and conditions of this Agreement as to an Employee.
- B. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as limiting the right of an Employee having a grievance to discuss the matter informally with any supervisor of the departments and having the grievance adjusted without formal proceedings.
- C. Pending the grievance and the final disposition, the Employee shall continue to work in a regular and orderly manner without interruption.
- **SECTION 2 DEFINITION** The term "grievance" as used herein means a complaint by an individual employee, group of employees or the Union concerning the interpretation, application or violation of policies, agreements or administrative decisions affecting them.

Only grievances alleging a misinterpretation, misapplication or alleged violation of the expressed terms of this Agreement may be processed beyond STEP 2 of this procedure.

SECTION 3-EMPLOYEE GRIEVANCE

A. GRIEVANCE SPECIFICITY - A written grievance must include the following: (a) identify the grievant by name; (b) set forth with reasonable particularity and clarity the specific action or failure to act alleged; (c) the time and place of occurrence of said act; (d) the Township's representative whose action or failure to act forms the basis of the grievance, explaining the precise questions of interpretation or application of alleged violation of such provisions which underline the grievance and (f) must set forth with particularity the remedy sought.

B. EMPLOYEE GRIEVANCE STEPS

1. STEP ONE - DEPARTMENT HEAD

- a. An aggrieved Employee, with the Union president or his designee, shall submit in writing within thirty (30) calendar days after the aggrieved Employee knows or should have known of events giving rise to the grievance to the department head. Failure to act within said thirty (30) calendar days shall be deemed to constitute an abandonment of the grievance.
- b. The department head shall render a written decision within ten (10) working days from the receipt of the grievance.

2. STEP TWO - TOWNSHIP MANAGER

- a. In the event a satisfactory settlement has not been reached at STEP ONE or the department head fails to respond within the period prescribed, such employee may file a signed, written grievance with the Township Manager within seven (7) working days following the written decision of the department head or within seven (7) working days of its due date.
- b. The Township Manager shall hold a conference with the grievant and his Union representative within five (5) calendar days of the receipt of the request under 2.a.
- c. The Township Manager shall review the grievance and render a written decision within ten (10) working days after the conference with the grievant.

3 STEP THREE - ARBITRATION

- a. In the event the grievance has not been resolved at STEP TWO, or the Township Manager fails to respond within the time period prescribed, the Union may elect to file within twenty (20) working days either for binding arbitration of the dispute or where the grievance involves a disciplinary action subject to the jurisdiction of the Department of Personnel of the State of New Jersey's Appeals Procedure, the procedure must be utilized in lieu of the arbitration procedure. Failure to file a demand for arbitration within the prescribed time limits will constitute and abandonment of the grievance.
- b. It is agreed by the parties that no more than one (1) grievance shall be arbitrated before the same arbitrator at one time, unless the grievance concern the same facts and/or legal issues.
- c. The arbitrator shall be chosen in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC).
- d. The arbitrator shall be bound by the provisions of this Agreement and shall be restricted to the application of the facts presented to him. He or she shall not have the authority to add to, modify, detract from or alter in any way the provisions of the Agreement or any amendments or supplements hereto.
- e. In the event that a settlement of a grievance is agreed to by the parties, the costs of arbitration that are incurred to that point shall be borne equally by the parties. If the arbitration proceeds to its conclusion, the arbitrator's cost or fees shall be borne equally between the parties. Any other expenses incurred including, but not limited to, presentation or witnesses, shall be paid by the party incurring it.
- f. The arbitrator shall set forth his finding of the facts and reasons for making the award within thirty (30) calendar days after the conclusion of the arbitration hearing unless agreed to otherwise by the parties.
- D. TOWNSHIP GRIEVANCE Grievance initiated by the Township shall be filed in writing directly with the Union within the same period set forth above in STEP ONE. A meeting between the Township Manager and the Union representative shall be held within five (5) working days of the receipt of said filing and if a settlement cannot be reached, the procedure set forth in STEP THREE shall be applied.

ARTICLE 19 - SAFETY AND HEALTH

- **SECTION 1** The Union pledges to encourage all members to use safety equipment and observe safety rules. The Township shall, at all times, endeavor to maintain safe and healthy working conditions and provide employees with tools or devices to promote the safety and health of said employees.
- **SECTION 2** A Township representative and designated Union member shall meet periodically to discuss safety rules and health conditions and recommend to the Township all the necessary provisions to ensure the safe use and operation of all tools, equipment and work sites.
- **SECTION 3** It shall be the responsibility of all employees covered herein to ensure that all locker rooms, washrooms and dressing room facilities are maintained in a clean and healthy condition.

ARTICLE 20 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- **SECTION 1** No employee shall make or be requested to make any agreement or to enter into any understanding inconsistent or conflicting with the terms of this Agreement.
- **SECTION 2** The Township shall provide reasonable Bulletin Board space for the posting of Union notices to its members.
- **SECTION 3** Employees not included in the bargaining unit shall not be permitted to perform the duties of employees in the aforesaid bargaining unit, except that the Township may hire seasonal workers to assist with bargaining unit work between April $1^{\rm st}$ and October $30^{\rm th}$ of each year.
- **SECTION 4** No clause in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as to imply any lowering of present wages or working conditions.
- **SECTION 5** This Agreement shall not prevent the employees of the Aberdeen Township Road, Water, Parks and Recreation Department and Building and Grounds employees from receiving any fringe benefits awarded the employees of Aberdeen Township by action of the Aberdeen Township Council during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 21 - BREAKS

SECTION 1 - Employees shall be granted a fifteen (15) minute break in the morning and a fifteen (15) minute break in the afternoon without loss of pay.

ARTICLE 22 - UNIFORMS

- **SECTION 1** A uniform company designated by The Township will supply and clean uniforms for all employees. Protective clothing needed for the job, such as hard hats, raingear, boots, work gloves, safety glasses, etc. will be supplied and maintained by the Township. Upon termination of employment, the employee shall return these items to the Township.
- **SECTION 2** Employees shall be required to wear the uniforms during working hours and shall make every reasonable effort to maintain uniforms in good condition. All uniforms shall be inspected by the Department Head of the particular group from time to time to ensure proper condition, cleanliness and uniformity.
- **SECTION 3** All employees shall receive a reimbursement for safety toe boots of \$300.00 each year of the contract to cover the cost of work boots to be paid by April $1^{\rm st}$ of each year.
- **SECTION 4** The Township reserves the right to designate the supplier, type and color of uniform.

ARTICLE 23 - SUPPER PROVISION

- **SECTION 1** All employees covered by the terms of this contract shall be entitled to a meal paid for by the Township when they are working ten (10) consecutive hours. If there is an additional five to six hours worked, there shall be another break for a meal on a split basis (half of the crew). After each six ensuing hours, a meal period will be provided.
- **SECTION 2** Employees shall eat said meals at a restaurant or restaurants designated by the Township.
- SECTION 3 The maximum monies allowed for such meal are as follows:

 Breakfast, lunch and dinner \$20.00 that must be used within twenty-four (24) hours or paid out in the next pay period.

SECTION 4 - Each employee shall sign a voucher for said meal or meals each time they eat, attaching a copy of bill or check to the voucher as proof that the meal was consumed by said employee.

ARTICLE 24 - PRESCRIPTION PLAN

All employees and their eligible dependents, covered by this Agreement, shall be entitled to participate in the Township's Prescription Plan as set forth within in the Township Plan Document in effect at the initiation of this Agreement. All employee contributions and co-payments are hereby set forth within the Plan Document in effect at the initiation of this Agreement. Any proposed changes in the aforementioned plans shall be discussed with the Union prior to being implemented by the City.

ARTICLE 25 - HEALTH, PENSION AND WELFARE BENEFITS

SECTION 1 — All employees and their eligible dependents, covered by this Agreement, shall be entitled to participate in the Township's Prescription Plan as set forth within the Township's Plan Document. All employee contributions and co-payments are hereby set forth within the Plan Document in effect at the initiation of this Agreement.

SECTION 2 - The Township shall continue the present program of payment of premiums for Life Insurance for Retirees.

SECTION 3 - The Township shall continue the program of payment of premiums for disability income insurance presently in effect for the term of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2025.

SECTION 4 - As per Township Resolution 83-132, the Township shall continue to provide the health benefits program for all employees who retired after twenty-five (25) years of service to the Township. The terms, conditions and benefits of said program, including partial payment of premiums, shall be applicable to retirees on the same basis as heretofore set forth for active employees.

The Township shall make available a chapter 125 medical services plan. All employees under this agreement are required to contribute. The Township, on a quarterly basis, shall reimburse the cost of same. A "Wellness Benefit" is available as a reimbursement for out of pocket medical expenses when required documentation is submitted as follows:

\$1,000.00 per year

ARTICLE 26 - DENTAL

All employees and their eligible dependents, covered by this Agreement, shall be entitled to participate in the Township's Dental Plan as set forth within in the Township Plan Document in effect at the initiation of this Agreement. All employee contributions and copayments are hereby set forth within the Plan Document in effect at the initiation of this Agreement. Any proposed changes in the aforementioned plans shall be discussed with the Union prior to being implemented by the City.

ARTICLE 27 - WAGES

SECTION 1 - The salary guide for all classifications shall be effective January 1, 2022 and is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

SECTION 2 - The present practice of granting wage increases to reach the maximum rate shall continue.

SECTION 3 - CLASSIFICATION OF RATES - Any employee who is directed by the Township to perform work at a higher classification other than his certified permanent Civil Service position, shall be paid at the classification rate that exists in this contract, provided however, that said employee shall be required to work a minimum of two hours on each workday to be eligible for payment. The Director shall keep proper records for payroll purposes and shall certify same to the management and treasurer for each pay period. Employees using the vactor will be given \$2.00 more per hour for 8 hour usage, distributed evenly. Employees doing masonry and carpentry work shall receive \$1.75 more per hour while doing that work. Employees working as camera operator shall receive \$.50 more per hour.

The rate for employee working out of classification is \$.50 an hour, except as set forth above.

Section 4 — An employee who is promoted or moved to a higher job title shall be placed on the next highest range on the salary guide in the new title that provides a minimum of an increase in their hourly rate of \$.50.

ARTICLE 28 - LONGEVITY

A. The longevity payments shall be made according to the following schedule:

5	to	9 years of continuous service	\$2,000.00
10	to	14 years of continuous service	\$2,100.00
15	to	19 years of continuous service	\$2,200.00
20	to	24 years of continuous service	\$2,300.00
25	to	29 years of continuous service	\$2,400.00
30	or	more years of continuous service	\$2,500.00

- Employees shall be entitled to the longevity payments, pursuant to the above schedule, on December 15th of each year, provided that the employee has completed at least their fifth continuous year of regular full-time employment with the Township by December 15th. If an employee's fifth continuous year of regular full-time employment is reached prior to December 15th of the same calendar year, the employee shall be entitled to an additional payment of December 15th on a pro-rata basis to reflect the additional days the employee has been employed beyond the fifth anniversary date. Subsequent to the payment, the employee's anniversary date for the purpose of this Article, only, shall be December 15. FOR EXAMPLE: An employee's fifth year anniversary date is October 15, the employee shall be entitled to an additional two (2) months (60 days) of longevity payments or a total of 14 months of longevity payments. In each subsequent year, the employee shall receive the lump sum amount indicated for their corresponding years of service on December 15.
- C. All employees hired after June 1, 2018, <u>will not</u> receive a longevity payment. (this does not apply to temporary employees hired prior to June 1, 2018)

ARTICLE 29 - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

SECTION 1 It is agreed that the Union and employees shall not call or engage in a strike (or threats thereof) and that the Township shall not institute a lockout, for any cause whatsoever, during the term of this Agreement; nor shall the Union or any of the employees cause or participate in any cessation of work, slowdown, work stoppage or interference of any kind with normal Township operations. Employees, however, shall not be required to cross any primary picket line.

SECTION 2 - The Union shall not be liable for any strike, cessation of work, slowdown, work stoppage, or interference of any kind with

normal Township operations unless the Union has authorized such strike, cessation of work, slowdown, work stoppages or interference of any kind with Township operations or participated in same.

ARTICLE 30 - RIGHTS

- SECTION 1 The Township of Aberdeen hereby retains and reserves unto itself all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it prior to the signing of this Agreement by the Laws and Constitution of the State of New Jersey and of the United States, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following rights:
- A. To the executive management and administrative control of the Township government and its properties and facilities and the activities of its employees.
- B. To hire all employees and subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and conditions for continued employment or assignments and to promote and transfer employees.
- C. To suspend, demote, discharge or take other disciplinary action for good and just cause according to law.
- SECTION 2 The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities of the Township, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection herewith shall be limited only by the specific and express term of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms hereof are in conformance with the Constitution and Laws of New Jersey and of the United States.
- **SECTION 3** Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict the Township of its powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities under R.S. 40, R.S. 11 or any other National, State, County or Local Laws or Ordinances.

ARTICLE 31 - EMPLOYEE TRAINING

SECTION 1 - The Township and AFSCME Local 3435 agree that training is an integral function of management and an essential requirement for all employees to promote acceptable and increase levels of competence.

- **SECTION 2** AFSCME Local 3435 agrees that it will encourage employees to maintain acceptable and increased levels of competence by:
- A. Keeping abreast of changes occurring in their occupation as provided to the AFSCME Local 3435 by the Township.
- B. Participating in development activities in order to perform more efficiently in current and future assignments. These development activities may include on-the-job training and classroom training, which shall be during a regular tour of duty or if otherwise, compensated for at appropriate rate of pay.
- C. Utilizing and sharing with fellow employees new skills acquired through training.
- **SECTION 3** The Township will plan and provide for training and development of employees to meet acceptable and increasing levels of competence.
- **SECTION 4** The Township and AFSCME 3435 agree to meet, upon written notice of either party, to consider training and development programs for employees covered by the Agreement. Such programs, as required by management, shall include full reimbursement by the Township for approved courses that are completed by employee as part of employee training program.
- **SECTION 5** Upon successful completion or certification of classes/training programs, the employee shall receive the following hourly increases:
 - a. Pesticide applications \$.25 per hour
 - b. Vocational/trade school \$.50 per hour
 - c. Tree cutting/pruning \$.50 per hour
 - d. Water/Sewer Class 1 \$.75 per hour
 - e. Water/Sewer Class 2 and higher \$1.00 per hour
 - f. CPWM (upon receiving certification) \$1.75 per hour

Classes/training and certification programs must be job related and approved by the Township.

ARTICLE 32 - EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE

SECTION 1 — AFSCME Local 3435 agrees to support and cooperate with the Township of Aberdeen in improving employee performance furtherance thereof, AFSCME Local 3435 shall encourage all employees to:

- A. Be in attendance and punctual for scheduled work hours;
- B. Give such effort to their work as is consistent with the requirements thereof;
- C. Avoid waste in the utilization of materials;
- D. Maintain and improve levels of performance;
- E. Cooperate in the installation of methods and technological and suggest other improvements where possible;
- F. Assist where possible, in building good will between the Township of Aberdeen and AFSCME Local 3435 and the public at large.

SECTION 2 AFSCME Local 3435 recognizes that it is the responsibility of the Township to determine levels of performance for employees, and to establish standards and methods to provide services to the public in the most efficient manner possible. AFSCME Local 3435 pledges its cooperation in the attainment of such standards and methods.

ARTICLE 33 - UNION RIGHTS

SECTION 1 - The Union president, or his designee, shall be permitted to conduct Union business during the workday, only upon the advanced approval of the employee's immediate supervisor. Union business shall be limited to the administration of the Collective Bargaining Agreement through the processing and attendance of the internal grievance procedure and attendance at negotiation sessions for a successor collective Bargaining Agreement should these sessions be conducted during the work day.

SECTION 2 - An individual grievant shall be permitted to attend the grievance hearing along with one representative of the Union. For any Union filed-grievance (which shall be defined as a grievance on behalf of two or more members of the Union), attendance shall be limited to a total of two representatives of the Union along with the Union president (not including representatives of Council 63's staff).

SECTION 3 - The Township shall permit authorized Union representatives, who are not employees of the Township, to discuss Union business with their membership on the Township premises, so long as these discussions are not conducted during workday (workday is defined as being actual working hours) and adequate advance notice and approval is given by the Township manager as to time and location of the meetings.

ARTICLE 34 - FULLY BARGAINED PROVISIONS

This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final understanding and settlement by the parties on all bargainable issues that were or could have been the subject of negotiations. During the term of this Agreement neither party will be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter, whether or not covered by this Agreement, and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

ARTICLE 35 - TERM AND RENEWAL

This Agreement shall be in full force and effect as of January 1, 2022 and shall remain in effect to and including December 31, 2025, without any reopening date. This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect from year to year thereafter, unless one party or the other gives notice, in writing, no sooner than one hundred twenty (120) days nor later than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration date of this Agreement of a desire to change, modify or terminate this Agreement.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents to be signed by their duly authorized officers as of the day and year first above written.

This Agreement is entered into this 21 day of March, 2022.

TOWNSHIP OF ABERDEEN	AFSCME LOCAL 3435
A punell	Shay South - AKSME Council &
Township MANAGER.	Staff Represent- Two
	Jours Centub.
	9th

EXHIBIT ONE - CLASSIFICATION AND SALARY SCHEDULE

A stipend of \$1,000 annually will be included in employee's regular pay (not separate check) if they are an active volunteer fireman in Aberdeen. (days off for fire training will be allowed with approval of Township (excluding firemen's convention)). The annual stipend shall be contingent upon submission of written proof of active volunteer firefighter status.

AFSCME WAGE SCALE 2022-2025

STEPS Base rate for All Titles (Including Building Service Worker) 2.5% in each year of the agreement

rate	2022	2023	2024	2025	hours	2022	2023	2024	2025
1	\$21.78	\$22.33	\$22.88	\$23.46	1	\$45,310.97	\$46,443.74	\$47,604.83	\$48,794.95
2	\$23.55	\$24.14	\$24.75	\$25.37	2	\$49,002.29	\$50,227.34	\$51,483.03	\$52,770.10
3	\$25.47	\$26.11	\$26.76	\$27.43	3	\$52,970.45	\$54,294.71	\$55,652.08	\$57,043.38
4	\$27.54	\$28.23	\$28.94	\$29.66	4	\$57,284.69	\$58,716.80	\$60,184.72	\$61,689.34
5	\$32.41	\$33.22	\$34.05	\$34.90	5	\$67,412.74	\$69,098.06	\$70,825.51	\$72,596.15
6	\$35.18	\$36.06	\$36.96	\$37.88	6	\$73,180.44	\$75,009.95	\$76,885.20	\$78,807.33

^{*}Salary rate at start date and start of each year

(i.e. l=salary rate at start date; 2=salary rate at start of 2nd year)

Salary Differentials Premiums 2080 Hours

Mechanic/Welder \$3.00 \$6,240.00 Equipment Opera \$3.00 \$6,240.00

Vactor Operator* \$2.00 per hour

Senior Parks Main \$0.50 \$1,040.00 Premium is added to base rate for these titles

An employee promoted to a position with a salary differential will stay in the employee's current step with the addition of the differential. This does not apply to promotions completed prior to 1/1/2007.

^{*}Vactor Operator to receive operator pay while running vactor truck